
1 

 

  

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2018 

2104 WEST LABURNUM AVENUE 

RICHMOND, VA   23227 

 

CALL TO ORDER                         9:00 a.m. 

 

CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

 

CHAIRMAN’S AGENDA 

 

ITEM NO.                              Page(s) 

 

1. Public Comment Period  

 

2. Minutes of Regular Meeting of August 17, 2018                 3-13 

 

3. Chairman’s Report                      

  Resolution of Appreciation for Mr. Allen Lane              14 

 

4. Audit Committee Report  

    2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)           15 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

   ITEM NO. 

  

5.   Residential Recycling Program 

 

6. Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Program 

     

7. Consideration of Resolution 19-01: Awarding Contracts for Household Hazardous Waste Collection, 

Hauling and Disposal and Used Oil Recycling              16-17 

 

8. Consideration of Resolution 19-02: Amending the Contract for Petersburg MSW and Curbside 

Recycling Collection Services                       18-19 

 

9. Consideration of Resolution 19-03: Amending the Contracts for Hopewell MSW and Curbside 

Recycling Services                    20-21 

 

10. Operations and Program Statistics 

  

11. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Report 

  

     CENTRAL VIRGINIA  
    WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

2100 West Laburnum Avenue, Suite 105, Richmond, Virginia  23227. 804/359-8413   .     Fax 804/359-8421    .  www.cvwma.com 



2 

 

  

 

12. Public Information 

  

13. Financial Reports for August 2018                 22-30 

 

14. Administrative                      

 

 

OLD/NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Upcoming Meetings: 

 

Technical Advisory Committee - Thursday, October 4, 2018 – 9:00 a.m.  

 Executive Committee Meeting – Tuesday, October 9, 2018 – 2:00 p.m.  

 Board of Directors Meeting (Chesterfield) – Friday, October 19, 2018 – 9:00 a.m. 

 Curbside Education Advisory Committee – Tuesday, October 23, 2018 – 10 a.m. 

 (Appomattox Regional Library, Nelson Worley Board Room, 2nd floor, 209 E. Cawson St, Hopewell)  

 

 

 
At any time during the meeting the Board may go into a closed session pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3712 for purposes of 

consulting with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice, as authorized under Virginia Code 

Section 2.2-3711 (A) (7). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

CHAIRMAN’S AGENDA 

ITEM NO. 2  
 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 17, 2018 

 

Minutes of the August 17, 2018 CVWMA Board of Directors meeting are attached for review and 

consideration. 

 

 Recommended Action:    Approval of minutes 

 

Attachment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

AUGUST 17, 2018 

6605 COURTS DRIVE 

PRINCE GEORGE, VA 23875 

 

 

MEMBERS/ALTERNATES PRESENT MEMBERS/ALTERNATES NOT PRESENT 

  

 Voting: 
 

Marcia Phillips (M-Chesterfield), Chairman Mark Kukoski (M-Richmond), Treasurer  

Scott A. Wyatt (M-Hanover), Vice Chairman  J. Allen Lane (M-Henrico), Past Chair 

Patricia Paige (M-New Kent), Secretary  Jennifer Schontag (A-Ashland) 

Robert L. Dunn (M-Chesterfield), Director Michelle Johnson (A-Charles City)  

Lee Sloppy (M-Ashland) Clay Bowles (A-Chesterfield) 

Ricky Hicks (M-Charles City) Jeffrey Howard (A-Chesterfield) 

Scott Zaremba (M-Chesterfield)  Al Pace (A-Chesterfield) 

Leigh Dunn (M-Goochland)  Doug Smith (M-Colonial Heights) 

Stephen Chidsey (M-Hanover) William E. Henley (A-Colonial Heights) 

Marcia E. Kelley (M-Henrico) Dwayne Jones (A-Goochland) 

Chip England (A-Henrico) Randy Hardman (A-Hanover) 

Jon Clary (A-Henrico) Michael Flagg (A-Hanover) 

Monique Robertson (M-Hopewell)  Robert Whiteman (M-Henrico) 

Tangela Innis (M-Petersburg) Bentley P. Chan (A-Henrico) 

William Riggleman (A-Petersburg)  James H. Burrell (A-New Kent)  

Johnny Melis (A-Powhatan) Cindy Odum Harris (M-Powhatan)  

Michael Purvis (M-Prince George) Rod Compton (A-Prince George) 

David McNeel (M-Richmond) Miles Jones (M-Richmond) 

 

 

 

Non-Voting: Guests: 

William Riggleman (A-Petersburg)  Valerie Brockett, Prince George County 
 

 

 

Staff: 

 

Kimberly A. Hynes, Executive Director                                                                                                                        

Richard Nolan, Director of Operations 

Terry Eckhout, Accounting and Financial Manager 

Reginald D. Thompson, Operations Technician 

Nancy Drumheller, Public Affairs Manager 

Mary Beth Mains, Part-time Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

With a quorum in attendance Chairman Marcia Phillips (M-Chesterfield) called the meeting to order at 9:09 

a.m. Chairman Phillips thanked our host, Prince George County for their generosity and for providing 

breakfast. 

 

CHAIRMAN’S AGENDA 

 

Item No. 1: Public Comment Period 

 

Chairman Phillips opened the floor for public comment. Without any requests to address the Board, she 

closed the public comment period. 

 

Item No. 2: Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 15, 2018 

 

Chairman Phillips opened the floor for a motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of June 15, 

2018 as submitted. A motion was made by Mr. J. Clary (A-Henrico), seconded by Mr. S. Chidsey (M-

Hanover), and carried that the minutes of the June 15, 2018 Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

(CVWMA) Board of Directors meeting be approved as submitted. 

 

Item No. 3: Installation of Officers for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 

Mrs. Terry Eckhout, CVWMA Accounting and Financial Manager, administered the Oath of Office to the 

new officers for the 2018-2019 fiscal year. Mrs. T. Eckhout requested that all officers-elect stand, raise their 

right hand, and recite the Oath of Office after her. 

 

Officers Sworn in for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year are as follows: 

 

Mrs. Marcia Phillips (M-Chesterfield)…...Chairman 

Mr. Scott Wyatt (M-Hanover)…………....Vice-Chair 

Ms. Patricia Paige (M-New Kent) …….....Secretary  

Mr. Robert Dunn (M-Chesterfield)……….Director  

 

Mr. Mark Kukoski (M-Richmond), Treasurer, was not in attendance. 

 

Item No. 4: Chairman’s Report 

 

Consideration of Resolution of Appreciation for M. David McNeel 

 

Chairman Phillips noted that Mr. McNeel is retiring from service with the City of Richmond and also from 

the CVWMA Board and she thanked him for his support to the Board. Chairman Phillips asked Mrs. Teresa 

Eckhout, CVWMA Accounting and Financial Manager, to read the resolution. A motion was made by Mr. R. 

Dunn (M-Chesterfield), Director, seconded by Mrs. M. Kelley (M-Henrico), and carried that the Resolution 

of Appreciation for Mr. David McNeel be approved as presented. Mrs. K. Hynes, CVWMA Executive 

Director thanked Mr. McNeel for his help in coordinating with the City of Richmond and for his 

contributions to the Board and she wished him well.  

 

Chairman Phillips noted that the Resolution of Appreciation for Mr. Allen Lane (M-Henrico), former 

Chairman will be deferred until next month when Mr. Lane can attend.  

 

 

 



6 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

 

Item No. 5: 2018 Education and Outreach and Program Statistics Presentation 

 

Mrs. Nancy Drumheller, CVWMA Public Affairs Manager, stated she would showcase efforts   throughout 

the region in Fiscal Year 2018 for education and outreach. Who are our customers? The localities and the 

public. Mrs. Drumheller, stated that this year CVWMA staff sent out a Customer Service Survey to our 

external customers in September that ran through November 15, 2017 to find out how we are doing, what 

programs the public wants offered by local governments, customer service, and how they want to receive 

information from us. Kim Hynes provided a full report to the board members of the survey results in January. 

This information is also posted on the CVWMA website.  

 

CVWMA Public Information staff and Call Center staff continue to be busy making a positive impact in the 

region. Staff provide daily customer service and outreach and education in a variety of ways. Staff continues 

to use in-home, away-from-home and online communications to provide customers (internal and external) 

with program information and the importance of recycling correctly as we found our customers get 

information through the multi-channel world of social media including telephone calls, public events, and 

outreach programs simultaneously.  

 

Referring to the slides, Mrs. Drumheller noted the challenges to CVWMA brand as it has many different 

faces in the region because each of the member jurisdictions offers different programs to their residents. She 

went on say, the Authority has a big broad footprint in the region, yet it appears the public still does not 

understand who we are and what we do.  A high level of expertise is needed for staff positions. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller noted that public information staff continue to implement outreach and education in multiple 

formats each month. The total outreach numbers for this fiscal year are lower than last year, but the 

Educational Outreach Specialist position was vacant for 2 months until Ms. Kate Carney started in October. 

Even with the vacancy, we made a big difference. Requests come from many different groups. Mrs. 

Drumheller reported that Public Information (PI) staff (Mrs. Drumheller and Ms. Carney) responded to 334 

requests for the fiscal year, and of these requests 192 were for presentations (although possibly as many as 

300 actual presentations because each request could include 6 or 7 separate programs on one request), worked 

36 events, served on judging panels 4 times processed 77 requests for educational materials. Staff estimates 

impacting over 16,000 people through education and outreach and distributed over 65,000 educational 

materials. Mrs. Drumheller noted that we count media and events as one as we have no actual count. She 

went on to report that the data she was presenting was only the efforts of the PI staff and does not include 

what is being done by the locality staff in education and outreach or efforts by the CVWMA Customer 

Service Team.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller pointed out that PI staff provided service to all 13-member localities this past fiscal year. 

Our service area is very large and a broad knowledge base is required as each locality does things a little 

differently. In addition, staff continues to try to stay current with Standards of Learning for public schools, 

especially in the area of STEM and/or STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art and Math).  

 

PI staff provide educational materials with the longest shelf life as possible as we want to keep our 

educational messages in front of the public as much as possible. Educational materials were requested and 

distributed across the region, which included collection schedules, extra container stickers, plastic bag 

keepers, handouts, magnets and much more. Mrs. Drumheller noted that PI staff counted out, packaged, and 

distributed over 65,000 educational materials in FY18, compared to 88,000 materials distributed in FY17. 

Mrs. Drumheller noted there was no educator for several months and so less materials were distributed. 

Finally, Mrs. Drumheller also noted that staff worked with Jerry McKenna, former director of the Henrico 



7 

 

County Public Library, Jon Clary and Megan Brown for bookmarks in all of Henrico Libraries as part of 

America Recycles Day and this is part of the reason why Henrico had the largest quantity of educational 

materials distributed, 23,381. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller noted it was brought to their attention while showing the Journey to the MRF video, that 

there was a group that was not being served, the Hearing Impaired. Staff added Closed Captioning to the 

video this past year. Spanish subtitles were also added which fulfilled one of staff’s Strategic Plans items of 

reaching other populations. 

 

In addition, Mrs. Drumheller referenced our Mascot R3, our R3 puppet as well as our Reduce, Reuse, Recycle 

Special Scout Patch. Mrs. Drumheller spoke of the how important partnerships are to the Authority and this 

year staff worked with Richmond Family Magazine Kids Can- Do Feature and Kate Carney had three 

different recycled crafts featured in three separate monthly issues. Over 38,000 Richmond Family Magazines 

are distributed at over 850 locations from Ashland to Petersburg and over 8,000 families receive their e-news. 

There is also an online feature. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller mentioned that the Authority received the $5,000 education grant from the Carton Council 

to educate residents about recycling cartons. An added value to this grant award, was that Mrs. Drumheller 

was asked to be on a panel of speakers with Barbara Heineken (Carton Council) to share with members of the 

Maryland Recycling Network and others registered during a free webinar on how CVWMA used the grant 

monies for education and outreach. 

 

For America Recycles Day, Mrs. Drumheller shared the value of working with local magician and juggler, 

Jonathan Austin who taught children and adults about the importance of recycling, litter prevention, reusing 

things, natural resources and more. He talked about plastic bags and to make sure to recycle them if you use 

them at local grocery stores as they harm wildlife and contaminate. He included a magic act on cartons and 

what new items they can be made into as well as how to use plastic bags to learn how to juggle. Over 3,400 

students and adults were impacted. An added value of these special recycling education programs includes 

fulfillment of Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Education credits for reporting to National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) for our localities.  

 

In addition, Mrs. Drumheller mentioned the contest with CBS6 and over 4,500 people participated by 

answering questions about carton recycling to be eligible to enter the contest to win a $250 gift card. There 

were over 2,900 people that asked for more information about CVWMA which was not a requirement to be 

eligible for the contest. Mrs. Drumheller reiterated the added value of all of the partnerships CVWMA has 

developed. The survey culminated on America Recycle Days and Mrs. Hynes was interviewed on Virginia 

This Morning.  

 

Ms. Drumheller shared information on slide about Earth Day and all the activities that took place across the 

region. 

 

CVWMA staff heavily promotes member jurisdictions and CVWMA continually works with localities for 

assistance and support in sharing information to residents. It’s now more important than ever that we work 

together to clean up the recycling stream. Mrs. Drumheller thanked the localities for their efforts on social 

media and signage to help with contamination messaging but noted that people do not seem to get it. They are 

still using plastic bags to take their recyclables to the drop off. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller noted the annual collection schedule is the biggest educational material that CVWMA staff 

circulates. Staff includes as many educational messages as we can on it as the public looks for this piece each 

year. Once again, our friend and avid recycler, Andrew Frieden (local NBC 12 Meteorologist), a valuable 



8 

 

partner shared a picture of his new calendar with all his followers on social media. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller stated that the Customer Service Team is the Authority’s front line with the public, and two 

full time representatives and previously, one-part time representative, and one Call Center Supervisor provide 

customer service to between 9,000-10,000 calls a month and are like a 411 because we have so many 

different programs. The Call Center received over 100,000 calls this fiscal year. About 50,000 heard a 

message in the phone queue and did not call back. Our Customer Service Team processed over 53,000 

inbound calls, made over 6,800 outbound calls (follow-up, verify service) , and responded to over 6,180 

web/email requests. In addition, they mailed out over 11,000 publications and over 678 Plastic Bag Keepers 

and processed many credit card sales of bins and carts. Mrs. Drumheller discussed the value of live agents 

and the countless teachable moments they provide especially with the impact of contamination, service issues, 

inclement weather, slides, etc. Mrs. Drumheller relayed the Customer Service Team is doing a great job in 

their positions which are customizable depending on each program the jurisdictions participate in. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller reported CVWMA continues to see a lot of online communications, as an educational 

component all on its own. In addition to keeping the website current and daily posts on social media, staff 

adds educational Pins on Pinterest and maintains a locality specific page for all 13-member jurisdictions, an 

Event calendar for any special collection events, the Recycling Wizard feature as well as sharing locality 

information, videos, award recognition etc. Online communications are being completed simultaneously 

while staff are providing programs, answering emails, etc. Mrs. Drumheller reported that other Outreach 

Services include the Curbside Email Reminder, the Waste Reduction News Monthly electronics newsletter, 

the Regional Waste Line and the Electronic Recycling Collection Update Email blast.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller stated that there were over 205,200 unique visitors, meaning each user information or email 

address is only counted once and there were over 429,400 page visits. CVWMA has over 8,000 

Likes/Followers on Facebook. Followers want to see the events that are going on and Do It Yourself projects 

(DIY). Pinterest visits average about 1,000 impressions per month and 31,000 users subscribe to the Curbside 

Email Reminder. Waste Reduction News Monthly Email Newsletter has more than 1,300 subscribers.  

 

Contamination is impacting all residential and drop-off recycling programs. Some of the member localities 

are now paying more for recycling collection services because of contamination issues. We need help getting 

the word out to recycle right. How do we educate residents on the impact they are each making when they do 

not recycle correctly? People need to see education messages 21 times before it sinks in. Mrs. Drumheller 

thanked Mrs. P. Paige, (M-New Kent), Secretary, for sharing New Kent’s recycling publication which showed 

how to recycle.  

 

As we start our new fiscal year, Mrs. Drumheller stated CVWMA staff goals included going back to the 

basics of recycling, contamination education and working with CVWMA recycling contractors as they roll 

out Oops! Stickers to educate users about contamination. In addition, the Authority plans to work towards 

upgrading the phone system to include more effective messages for external customers. Staying current and 

maximizing technologies that engage customers is another priority as well as continuing to promote 

consistent messaging on accepted items and working with member localities to collaborate regionally on 

educational messages, and lastly ensure sustainability of our programs. 
 

Mr. Rich Nolan, CVWMA Director of Operations, presented the annual report on Fiscal Year 2018 Program 

Statistics. He noted that 37,152 tons of recycling was collected in the Residential Recycling Program in Fiscal 

Year 2018. This is slightly less than the previous year, by 762 tons. County Waste collected over 3,000 additional 

tons in Chesterfield County which was not part of the CVWMA program. Mr. Nolan noted there was a decrease in 

tonnage in Petersburg possibly due to contamination reinforcement.  

 



9 

 

Referring to the slide Mr. Nolan noted the Residential Recycling tonnage was highest in Henrico, at 31.4%. 

Richmond and then Chesterfield followed next with 29.1% and 27.2% respectively. Mr. Nolan noted all other 

participating jurisdictions were consistent with previous years. 

 

The average monthly misses for FY18 were 617 which is skewed by 2 major snow storms that occurred in January 

of 2018. Other factors that contributed to the increase year over year are more locality programs have been added 

since 2014 and carts were added in Richmond in FY16. Mr. Nolan noted that if the 2,000 calls that came in during 

the January 2018 snow storms were removed, the average number of misses would be 478 which is in line with 

previous years. 

 

Since May 2014 CVWMA has received a rebate from our contractor TFC on the sale of recyclables but effective 3 

months ago, the rebate was removed as part of the TFC negotiation.  This was due to China’s nonacceptance of 

contaminated mixed paper products. In FY18, $534,521 was provided back to localities which is less than FY17 

by $173,946. Mr. Nolan stated the new TFC contract could yield positive rebates or negative costs depending on 

how the markets respond in the next year. 

 

Continuing, Mr. Nolan reported that in the Drop-Off program the volume has decreased slightly from 7,172 tons 

in FY18 to 6,882 tons for FY18. Mr. Nolan noted Mixed Paper tonnage is down by 404 tons. 

 

Mr. Nolan also reported on Other Programs including scrap metal and CFC/HCFC Recovery. The CFC/HCFC 

removal program has seen an uptick due to Chesterfield and Goochland joining the programs. Mr. Nolan noted 

Safe Garage Programs were down in used oil and antifreeze but up in Category 1 (paints and solvents). 

 

Mr. Nolan reported that there was a 237 ton increase in the Waste Tire program mainly due to Hanover County 

and the Propane Tank program had an increase of 311 mainly due to population growth. The Lead Acid Battery 

Program had 3,625 units collected. Textiles had a 160 ton decrease in FY18 due to the removal of a Goodwill 

trailer from the Henrico program. Mr. Nolan noted a big drop in eWaste collections mainly due to a change in 

contractors and fewer events held in FY18. 

 

Mr. Nolan noted that $1,036,301 was returned to the jurisdictions in FY18 which is $300,000 more than has ever 

been returned to the jurisdictions and the highest amount of revenue ever recorded by CVWMA. Scrape metal 

revenue was up by $300,000 in FY18 contributing to a net $82,000 increase from FY17 in total program revenues. 

Mr. Nolan highlighted that Used Oil revenue is up by $7,500 in FY18 even though the volume is down. He added 

receipts from lead acid batteries was up by $426. OCC revenue dropped by $10,298 due to China’s crack down on 

contamination and limiting acceptance of OCC and mixed paper. 

 

MSW Convenience Center Trash collections are up Mr. Nolan stated noting Chesterfield South’s strong growth 

and Residential MSW tonnage was steady in FY18. Mr. Nolan noted that Chesterfield is now hauling trash 

themselves from the convenience centers. 

 

Mr. Nolan noted Residential Curbside Recycling revenue was $534,521 and recycling revenue from the Drop Off 

Sites realized $1,036,301 in FY18; totaling $1,570,822 in revenue provided back to the localities.  

 

In closing Mr. Nolan noted the world events and China no longer importing recyclables and mixed paper will 

probably continue to have a negative effect on CVWMA’s Residential Recycling Program. He also stated that 

some local United States paper mills have recently reopened so that should positively affect our program, in the 

long run. The strong United States economy will also the recycling markets outlook.  

 

Mr. Nolan stated the 5-year update for the Solid Waste Management plan is due to the VA DEQ in August 2019. 

There are a few landfills in the area who have not been granted approvals to expand and some of the airspace is 

included in the currently approved plan. 

 



10 

 

Curbside contamination will be the focus of CVWMA this coming year. New rejection stickers have been created 

and Mrs. Hynes and Mr. Nolan will be meeting with individual contractors to help to correct the contaminations.  

 

Mr. S. Wyatt (M-Hanover), asked Mr. Nolan what the long-term plan is. Mr. Wyatt noted a Canadian company 

will be purchasing the Hanover company, Bear Island Paper. Mr. Wyatt also referred to the tariffs that were 

recently placed on paper exports. Mr. Nolan stated foreign companies are buying older plants in the United States 

and some will be taking residential Mixed Paper eventually. He believes it will make recycling stronger by 

recycling domestically. Mr. Nolan stated he thought cleaning up recycling now will increase marketability and 

sustain recycling for the future. 

 

Item No. 6: Residential Recycling Program  

 

Mr. R. Nolan, CVWMA Director of Operations, reported that the total tonnage of recyclables collected in the 

month of July in the residential program was 3,051 tons, 123 tons more than last July. Mr. R. Nolan also added 

that there was a total of 615 misses for the month compared to 527 in 2017. The misses were consistent across all 

contractors. 

 

Mrs. K. Hynes, CVWMA Executive Director stated CVWMA has come to an agreement with TFC to amend 

their contract. She stated that there appears to be an uptick in commodity pricing and cardboard prices are rising 

slightly with a $5.00 per ton increase in August 2018. She hopes the uptick in pricing activity will continue over 

the next year and beyond. Mrs. Hynes also stated there will be new service agreements that will need to be signed 

by the localities.  

 

Item No. 7: Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Program  

 

Mr. R. Thompson, CVWMA Operations Technician, stated that CFS is cracking down on the contamination issue 

in Petersburg’s Curbside Recycling program. They rejected 834 cans due to contamination in June and July. 

CVWMA staff met with the City of Petersburg on Tuesday, August 14th and shared this information. Mrs. K. 

Hynes, CVWMA Executive Director, has offered to talk about recycling contamination at Council and/or Ward 

meetings to help bring awareness to the contamination issues.  

 

In the month of July 21 misses were recorded in Ashland and 26 misses for the Chesterfield tax relief program for 

County Waste. For the month of July in Colonial Heights, 52 misses were recorded, 98 misses in Hopewell; and 

119 misses in Petersburg in the trash program in July. Mr. R. Thompson reported CFS was penalized $500 for the 

drop off recycling program due to 5 missed pulls in Henrico County last month. 

 

Mr. S. Chidsey (M-Hanover) asked where Petersburg recycling loads are going. Mr. Nolan stated they are 

now going to County Waste. Mrs. Hynes stated they are trying to work things out with TFC for the future. 

 

Item No. 8: Operations and Program Statistics 

 
Mr. R. Nolan stated that the July program statistics were not available due to some new fiscal year formatting 

issues. He stated that he would email and post online when they are available. The June 2018 and Fiscal Year 

2018 program statistics are available on the website.  

 

In September, staff will be preparing a resolution for the Board to consider to award Household Hazardous Waste 

and Used Oil contracts. An evaluation committee has interviewed two offerors and another will be interviewed 

later today. Recommendations will be presented for consideration at the September Board Meeting. The 5-year 

contract will be effective July 1, 2019. Another RFP is being drafted for Ashland MSW and another for Roll Off 

and FEL Recycling was recently issued. 

 

 



11 

 

Item No. 9: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Report 
 

Mr. Nolan reported that the TAC met on August 2, 2018 and a representative from the Virginia Department of 

Emergency Management (VDEM) spoke with the group to answer questions regarding FEMA and VDEM 

reimbursement in the event of a major disaster. The next TAC meeting is scheduled for September 6, 2018.  

 

Item No. 10:  Public Information  

 

Contamination 
Mrs. N. Drumheller stated staff has worked with the Recycling Partnership to customize Oops! Stickers for our 

residential recycling contractors to use. The contamination issue needs regionwide education. Mrs. Drumheller 

stated we have been doing education programs in schools for 25 years and those children are now adults. 

Residents need to understand how their actions impact the programs in their jurisdictions by not recycling 

correctly. Mrs. Drumheller referred to the slide which showed the remains of a truck that had caught on fire due to 

lithium batteries in the recycling. Paint, wood, plastic bags were found in the recycling and Mrs. Drumheller 

reiterated the need to get the message across to the residents, for safety and for the financial and environmental 

health of the program. 

 

The Curbside Education Advisory Committee shared many suggestions at the last meeting and a sample of staff 

efforts so far are newspaper advertisements, Oops! Stickers, an article by Mrs. K. Hynes, and a CBS TV 6 media 

interview. Mrs. Drumheller stated Mrs. Hynes will be meeting with each of our contractors to discuss the roll out 

of the Oops! Stickers. 

 

Education and Outreach 
Mrs. N. Drumheller reported that staff responded to 42 requests for the month of July, and of these requests, 32 

were for presentations, 6 were for educational materials, 3 were grassroot events and 1 media interview. Mrs. 

Drumheller stated that she and Ms. K. Carney created a new “Rethink Waste. Landfill? Recycle?” table top 

display, lessons and post lesson activities. In addition, Henrico County is adding 100 homes to its residential 

recycling program starting on September 11, 2018.  

 

Call Center/Customer Service July 

Our 3 Customer Service Representatives responded to over 8,900 calls, 728 emails in addition to mailings, 

cart management, database additions, and credit card purchases for carts and bins. In addition, Customer 

Service Representatives are educating an estimated 1,000 callers a month on contamination and accepted 

items.  

 

August 2018 Waste Reduction News 

Staff continues to use this online newsletter to encourage the public to recycle right, to reduce and reuse and 

to volunteer for the annual James River Regional Cleanup. 

 

CVWMA Website Statistics, Social Media, and Collection Day Email Reminder 
Mrs. Drumheller mentioned the website statistical data for the month of July: 18,401 unique visitors made 39,671 

visits to over 149,074 pages. Mrs. Drumheller reported that staff continues to see a lot of social media activity. 

Mrs. Drumheller reported a total of 328 new subscribers signed up for the email reminder in the month of July, 

with total subscribers now at 31,595 as of July 31, 2018. 

  

James River Regional Cleanup 
Mrs. N. Drumheller reported that volunteers are needed for the annual regional river cleanup that will take place 

on Saturday, September 8, 2018 from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. She mentioned that many of the Authority’s member 

localities are hosting cleanup sites. 

 



12 

 

Item No. 11: Financial Reports for July 2018  

 

Mrs. T. Eckhout, Accounting and Financial Manager, reported that July is the first month of the new fiscal 

year and financial activity is consistent. The Authority has a combined Net Income of over $526,112. The 

annual operating assessment is billed annually at the beginning of the year, therefore, net income will 

decrease monthly as operating expenses are incurred. 

 

The accounts receivable schedule is included and reflects the details of the amounts due to the Authority. All 

accounts are current. 

 

2018 Annual Audit 

CVWMA audit firm Brown & Edwards conducted their field work the week of July 30th. Staff is completing 

the 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and will be discussing the results of the audit and 

the draft CAFR with the Audit Committee on August 28th. The CAFR is to be presented at the September 

Board of Directors meeting for approval. 

 

Chairman Phillips opened the floor for a motion to accept and file the Financial Reports for July 2018 as 

submitted. A motion was made by Mr. S. Chidsey (M-Hanover), seconded by Mrs. P. Paige (M-New Kent), 

Secretary, and carried that the Financial Reports for July 2018 be approved and filed as submitted. 

 

Item No. 12: Administrative 

 

Mrs. K. Hynes welcomed Ms. Tangela Innis (M-Petersburg), the newest CVWMA Board member 

representing the City of Petersburg. On August 29th there is a meeting scheduled at the Crater Planning 

District Commission to discuss what we can do going forward to sustain recycling. 

 

Mrs. Hynes reminded the Board that included in this fiscal year budget is a Pay and Classification study. 

Work has already begun on the study and she expects to be able to discuss and present the results to the 

Executive Committee and to the Board by the end of the calendar year.  

 

Mrs. Hynes stated the Audit Committee will meet on August 28th to talk about the CAFR results. The results 

will be presented at the September Board meeting. The Technical Advisory Committee will meet Thursday, 

September 6th at 9 a.m. and the Executive Committee will meet on Thursday, September 13, 2018 at 2:00 

p.m. Mrs. Hynes stated she will be on vacation September 1st through the 12th and she thanked her team for 

another good fiscal year and for all of their support.  

 

Mrs. Hynes closed by thanking Ms. Valerie Brockett and Prince George County for hosting the August Board 

meeting and providing breakfast and goody bags. The September 21st Board Meeting will be in Richmond. 

 

Old/New Business  

 

Chairman Phillips asked if there was any old or new business to come before the Board and with no further 

business to come before the Board, Chairman Phillips opened the floor for a motion to adjourn the CVWMA 

Board of Directors meeting at 10:25 a.m. The motion was made by Mr. S. Wyatt (M-Hanover), Vice 

Chairman, seconded by Mr. J. Clary (A-Henrico) and carried that the August 17, 2018 Board of Directors’ 

meeting be adjourned. 

 

 
 



13 

 

CERTIFICATE  

 

I, Marcia Phillips, Chairman of the CVWMA, certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of 

the minutes of the August 17, 2018 regular meeting of the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

(CVWMA) Board of Directors. These minutes were adopted at a CVWMA Board meeting held at 9:00 a.m., 

September 21, 2018. Given under my hand and seal of the CVWMA this 21st day of September 2018. 

      

_______________________________________ 

                               Marcia Phillips, Chairman  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

 

Resolution of Appreciation 
Presented to 

 

  J. ALLEN LANE 
 

UPON COMPLETION OF HIS SERVICE AS CHAIRMAN OF THE 

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WHEREAS, J. Allen Lane served as Chairman of the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority Board 

of Directors from July 2016 to June 2018; and  

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Lane has served as a Member of the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority Board 

of Directors representing Henrico County since January 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Lane has provided outstanding leadership with the Authority, serving on the Executive 

Committee since July 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Lane has promoted regional cooperation by supporting Authority programs in Henrico 

County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Lane has been instrumental in raising awareness about recycling and solid waste 

management opportunities throughout the region; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Lane’s personal and professional commitment to the environment has been a benefit to the 

purpose of the Authority; therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

recognizes, thanks and commends Mr. J. Allen Lane for his outstanding service, efforts, and achievements as 

an invaluable leader to the Authority and upon completion of his term as Chairman, presents this Resolution 

as a token of esteem, and orders a copy to be spread upon the Minutes of this meeting. 

 

Adopted this 21st day of September 2018  

    

 

 Attest: _________________________________ 

     Marcia Phillips, Chairman 

 
Serving the Cities of Colonial Heights, Hopewell, Petersburg and Richmond, the Town of Ashland and the                                 Printed on and the Counties of 

Charles City, Chesterfield, Goochland, Hanover, New Kent, Powhatan and Prince George                                         Recycled Paper 

 

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA  
WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

2100 West Laburnum Avenue, Suite 105, Richmond, Virginia  23227  . 804/359-8413   .     Fax 804/359-8421    .  www.cvwma.com 



15 

 

 

                                                                                                                      CHAIRMANS AGENDA 

                                                                                                                                           ITEM NO. 4 

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

 

The CVWMA Audit Committee met on Tuesday, August 28, 2018 with the CVWMA staff and 

representatives of Brown Edwards, CVWMA’s audit firm to discuss the results of the annual audit. 

 

A draft copy of the CAFR was reviewed with the committee and staff will be presenting the CAFR 

and auditor’s comments to the Board at the meeting on September 21, 2018. At the time of this 

Board agenda, CVWMA is waiting on the state’s evaluation of other post-employment benefits 

which could require an adjustment to the financial statements and note disclosures. It is possible the 

information will not be received in time to print the final CAFR before the Board meeting for 

consideration. Staff will follow up by email to the Board next week with a draft CAFR. The 

CVWMA is required to submit the CAFR to the Virginia Auditor of Public Accounts by September 

30 each year. 

 

Audit Committee Members: 

Mr. Mark Kukoski (M-Richmond), Treasurer 

Mr. Robert Dunn (M-Chesterfield) 

Mr. Clay Bowles (A-Chesterfield) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

ITEM NO. 7 

 

 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-01: AWARDING CONTRACTS FOR HOUSEHOLD 

HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION, HAULING AND DISPOSAL AND USED OIL 

RECYCLING 

 

 
The terms of the contracts between CVWMA and Safety Kleen and Heritage Crystal Clean for Household 

Hazardous Waste Collection, Hauling and Disposal Services and Used Oil Recycling expire June 30, 2019.  

 

In accordance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act a Request for Proposals (RFP 18-03) was issued June 1, 

2018 for Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Hauling, and Disposal Services to include both Category 1 

(paint and solvents) hazardous waste and Used Oil.   Five companies sent in proposals. These companies 

included: Safety Kleen, Heritage Crystal Clean, ACK, Universal Environmental Services, and Atlantic Industrial 

Services, Inc.   From these proposals three were selected by the Evaluation Committee for further consideration. 

 

The Evaluation Committee comprised of Todd Flippen (Colonial Heights), Jon Clary (Henrico), Steve Chidsey 

(Hanover), Reggie Thompson (CVWMA) and Rich Nolan (CVWMA) met with Safety Kleen, Heritage Crystal 

Clean, and Universal Environmental Services.   

 

The results of the interviews and the decision of the Committee is to recommend approval for the utilization of 

Safety Kleen and Universal Environmental Services as providers for these services. Both firms have excellent 

environmental histories.  Safety Kleen has provided the CVWMA with excellent service for over fifteen years 

under previous Contracts for this service at a competitive price.  Universal Environmental Services will provide a 

rebate for the used oil that considers current crude oil and # 6 fuel oil market pricing.  

 

Attached is Resolution 19-01 authorizing the Executive Director to execute Contracts for Household 

Hazardous Waste Collection, Hauling and Disposal Services and Used Oil Recycling the associated 

Special Project Service Agreements.   

 

 Recommended Action: Approval of Resolution 19-01 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 

 

RESOLUTION 19-01 

 

 
A resolution awarding contracts for Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Hauling and Disposal 

between the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and Safety Kleen Inc. and for Used Oil 

Recycling Services with Universal Environmental Services and authorizing the Special Project Service 

Agreements with participating local jurisdictions for a five (5) year period commencing on June 1, 2019. 

 

THE CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY RESOLVES: 

 

WHEREAS, the report included as Staff Agenda Item No. 7 of the September 2018 Board Agenda 

outlined the proposed Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Hauling and Disposal Services to be 

provided by Safety Kleen and Used Oil Recycling Services to be provided by Universal Environmental 

Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and approval, to 

execute a contract for Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Hauling and Disposal Services between 

the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and Safety Kleen, Inc. and for Used Oil Recycling 

Services between Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and Universal Environmental 

Services; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and approval, to 

execute Special Project Service Agreements between the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

and member localities as requested; and 

 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage. 

 

 

             Adopted this 21st of September 2018 

 

 

 

         ATTEST:  _______________________________ 

             Marcia Phillips, Chair  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



18 
 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

ITEM NO. 8 

 

 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-02: AMENDING THE CONTRACT FOR 

PETERSBURG MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE AND CURBSIDE RECYCLING 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

The initial term contract between CVWMA and CFS Service Group LLC, dba a Container First 

Services (CFS) for Petersburg Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services expires 

June 30, 2019. This Contract allows for a two-year and three-year renewal option. 

 

The CVWMA and City of Petersburg requested a renewal proposal from CFS and received a 

response from CFS on February 13, 2018. City of Petersburg officials agreed to renew with new 

rates for five years commencing July 1, 2019. 

 

Attached is Resolution 19-02 authorizing the Executive Director to execute an Addendum for the 

renewal of this Contract for City of Petersburg Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 

Services as well as the associated Special Project Service Agreement.   

 

 

 

 Recommended Action: Approval of Resolution 19-02 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19 
 

RESOLUTION 19-02 
 
A resolution authorizing an addendum to the Petersburg Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

Collection Services Contract between the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and 

Container First Services (CFS). 

 

THE CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY RESOLVES: 

 

WHEREAS, the report included as Staff Agenda Item No. 8 of the September 2018 Board Agenda 

identified the mutual interest by the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority, Container First 

Services and the City of Petersburg to amend and renew the Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

Collection Services Contract for a five year term commencing July 1, 2019; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and 

approval, to execute a contract addendum to the Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 

Services for the City of Petersburg between the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and 

Container First Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and 

approval, to execute Special Project Service Agreements between the Central Virginia Waste 

Management Authority and the City of Petersburg.  

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage. 

 

 

             Adopted this 21st of September 2018 

 

 

 

         ATTEST:  _______________________________ 

             Marcia Phillips, Chair  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 
 

STAFF AGENDA 

ITEM NO. 9 

 

 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-03: AMENDING THE CONTRACTS FOR 

HOPEWELL MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES AND CURBSIDE 

REYCLING SERVICES  

  

The initial term of the contract between CVWMA and CFS Service Group LLC, dba a Container 

First Services (CFS) for Hopewell Municipal Solid Waste Collection Services Contract Services 

expires June 30, 2019. This Contract allows for a five-year renewal term. 

 

The CVWMA and City of Hopewell requested a renewal proposal from CFS and received a 

response on April 16, 2018. In addition, the initial term of the contract between CVWMA and 

County Waste LLC, for Hopewell Curbside Recycling Services expires June 30, 2019. This Contract 

also allows for a five-year renewal and a proposal was received from County Waste. 

 

Both five-year renewals were presented to the City of Hopewell Council Members for their 

consideration and approval. At a City Council Meeting on August 28, 2018, the City Council 

Members approved the extension of the Service Agreements with CVWMA for these services. 

 

Attached is Resolution 19-03 authorizing the Executive Director to execute an Addendum for the 

renewal of these Contracts for Hopewell Municipal Solid Waste Collection Services and Curbside 

Recycling Services as well as the associated Special Project Service Agreement.   

 

 

 Recommended Action: Approval of Resolution 19-03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



21 
 

 

RESOLUTION 19-03 
 
A resolution authorizing an addendum to the Hopewell Municipal Solid Waste Collection Contract 

between the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and Container First Services (CFS), and 

to the Hopewell Curbside Recycling Services Contract between Central Virginia Waste Management 

Authority and County Waste. 

 
THE CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY RESOLVES: 

 

WHEREAS, the report included as Staff Agenda Item No. 9 of the September 2018 Board Agenda 

identified the mutual interest by the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority, Container First 

Services and the City of Hopewell to amend and renew the Municipal Solid Waste Collection 

Services Contract for a five year term commencing July 1, 2019; and  

 

WHEREAS, the report included as Staff Agenda Item No. 9 of the September 2018 Board Agenda 

identified the mutual interest by the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority, County Waste 

and the City of Hopewell to amend and renew the Curbside Recycling Collection Services Contract 

for a five year term commencing July 1, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and 

approval, to execute a contract addendum to the Municipal Solid Waste Collection Contract for the 

City of Hopewell between the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and Container First 

Services, and a contract addendum to the Curbside Recycling Collection Services Contract between 

the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and County Waste; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and 

approval, to execute Special Project Service Agreements between the Central Virginia Waste 

Management Authority and the City of Hopewell.  

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage. 

 

 

 

 

             Adopted this 21st of September 2018 

 

 

 

 

         ATTEST:  _______________________________ 

             Marcia Phillips, Chair 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

  STAFF AGENDA 

                                                                                                                         ITEM NO. 13 

 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR AUGUST 2018 

 

The financial activity is consistent with previous months and the Authority continues to remain 

within total budget in all funds as of August 31, 2018. CVWMA has a combined Net Income of 

$472,053 year to date. The net income will decrease as we continue to incur expenses throughout 

the fiscal year. 

 

The accounts receivable schedule is included and reflects the details of the amounts due to the 

Authority. All accounts are current. 

  

 

 

 

 Recommended Action: Approval of the Financial Reports for August 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



23 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Summary 

August 2018 

 

 

Total Total  

Revenues Expenses NI Totals  

General Operating Fund 567,690$           110,365          457,325$           

Curbside Project Fund 1,434,264          1,417,353        16,911$             

Drop-Off Project Fund 63,946              64,699            (753)$                

Municipal Solid Waste Fund 505,537            506,967          (1,430)$              

CFC/HCFC 9,690                9,690              -$                     

Special Waste Collections 34,130              34,130            -$                     

Waste Tire Fund 8,020                8,020              -$                     

Appliance and Scrap Metal Hauling 123,885            123,885          -$                     

Yard Waste Projects 38,154              38,154            -$                     

Waste Transfer & Disposal 227,481            227,481          -$                     

Totals 3,012,797$      2,540,744$   472,053$         

Month to date Year to date Budget

Capital Outlay -$                    -$                  12,500$           

Summary - All Funds

 
 

 

 

 



 24 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

August 2018 

 

 

 

General Operating Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

     

Revenues:  

Annual Gov't Assessments -$                  561,661$        561,660$      (1)$                0.0%

Sponsorship and Grants -                    -                    -                  -                   0.0%

Interest on Investments 2,603              6,029              22,555          16,526           73.3%

    

Total Revenues 2,603              567,690          584,215        16,525           2.8%

   

Expenses:

Personnel services 33,169            66,045            406,660        340,615         83.8%

Fringe benefits 10,002            19,682            87,400          67,718           77.5%

Professional services 8,647              11,395            41,375          29,980           72.5%

Repairs and maintenance 881                1,186              3,375           2,189             64.9%

Advertising and promotions 64                  128                1,250           1,122             89.8%

Materials and supplies 750                885                4,700           3,815             81.2%

Other services and charges 1,409              1,804              14,950          13,146           87.9%

Leases 3,893              7,493              46,575          39,082           83.9%

Depreciation 873                1,747              11,125          9,378             84.3%

Contingencies -                    -                    2,135           2,135             100.0%

     

Total Expenses 59,688            110,365          619,545        509,180         82.2%

   

Net Income (59,688)$       457,325$      (35,330)$     492,655$      

 

 

Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  5,000$          5,000$           100.0%
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



25 

 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

August 2018 

 

 

 

Curbside Project Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

   

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 695,766$        1,318,342$      7,250,000$    5,931,658$     81.8%

Public Relations Assessment 18,020            37,215            219,000        181,785         83.0%

Customer Service Assessment 19,139            39,497            232,000        192,503         83.0%

96-gal Cart Revenue 17,948            36,190            160,800        124,610         77.5%

Sponsorship and Grants -                    -                    10,000          10,000           0.0%

Material Sales Rebate -                    -                    700,000        700,000         100.0%

Interest on Investments 1,304              3,020              11,295          8,275             73.3%

     

Total Revenues 752,177          1,434,264        8,583,095     7,148,831       83.3%

   

Expenses:  

Personnel services 15,781            31,670            198,580        166,910         84.1%

Fringe benefits 4,953              11,498            56,000          44,502           79.5%

Professional services 5,766              8,305              27,780          19,475           70.1%

Repairs and maintenance 599                807                2,980           2,173             72.9%

Advertising and promotions 3,067              3,067              81,750          78,683           96.2%

Materials and supplies 462                550                4,075           3,525             86.5%

Other services and charges 1,324              2,470              64,830          62,360           96.2%

Leases 2,469              5,039              30,400          25,361           83.4%

Depreciation 968                1,935              12,700          10,765           84.8%

Contractual services 695,766          1,318,342        7,250,000     5,931,658       81.8%

96-gal Cart Expense 16,312            33,670            154,000        120,330         78.1%

Material Sales Rebate -                    -                    700,000        700,000         100.0%

    

Total Expenses 747,467          1,417,353        8,583,095     7,165,742       83.5%

  

Net Income 4,710$          16,911$        -$                16,911$        

 

Capital Outlay -$                  5,000$          5,000$           100.0%
 

 

 

 



 26 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

August 2018 

 

 

 

Drop Off Project Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

    

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 53,696$          53,696$          547,000$      493,304$        90.2%

Contract Admin Costs 500                500                -                  (500)              0.0%

Materials Sales Rebate 6,458              9,750              300,000        290,250         96.8%

     

Total Revenues 60,654            63,946            847,000        783,054         92.5%

   

Expenses: 0

Personnel services 424                837                8,880           8,043             90.6%

Fringe benefits 253                435                2,400           1,965             81.9%

Professional services 655                770                1,780           1,010             56.7%

Repairs and maintenance 71                  89                  215              126               58.6%

Advertising and promotions -                    -                    2,500           2,500             100.0%

Materials and supplies 35                  43                  250              207               82.8%

Other services and charges 41                  76                  470              394               83.8%

Leases 124                185                1,175           990               84.3%

Contractual services 53,696            53,696            547,000        493,304         90.2%

Materials sales rebate  8,568              246,000        237,432         96.5%

    

Total Expenses 55,299            64,699            810,670        745,971         92.0%

  

Net Income 5,355$          (753)$            36,330$      (37,083)$       
 

 



27 

 

 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

August 2018 

 

 

 

Municipal Solid Waste Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

   

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 254,337$        499,061$        2,985,000$    2,485,939$     83.3%

Customer Service Assessment 2,748              5,500              33,200          27,700           83.4%

Contract Admin Costs -                    -                    -                  -                   0.0%

Interest on Investments 422                976                3,650           2,674             73.3%

     

Total Revenues 257,507          505,537          3,021,850     2,516,313       83.3%

   

Expenses: 0

Personnel services 1,342              2,646              17,180          14,534           84.6%

Fringe benefits 571                1,421              5,030           3,609             71.7%

Professional services 1,979              2,541              6,225           3,684             59.2%

Repairs and maintenance 211                291                930              639               68.7%

Advertising and promotions -                    -                    1,000           1,000             99.0%

Materials and supplies 98                  131                975              844               86.6%

Other services and charges 147                281                1,650           1,369             83.0%

Leases 185                428                2,610           2,182             83.6%

Depreciation 84                  167                1,250           1,083             86.6%

Contractual Services 254,337          499,061          2,985,000     2,485,939       83.3%

      

Total Expenses 258,954          506,967          3,021,850     2,514,883       83.2%

  

Net Income (1,447)$         (1,430)$         -$                (1,430)$        

Capital Outlay -$                  2,500$          2,500$           100.0%
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 28 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

August 2018 

 

 

 

Other Special Projects

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 162,772$        306,173$        2,491,000$    2,184,827$     87.7%

Contract Admin Costs -                    -                    -                  -                   0.0%

Materials Sales Rebate 90,298            135,188          375,000        239,812         63.9%

 

Total Revenues 253,070          441,361          2,866,000     2,424,639       84.6%

  

Expenses:  

Advertising and Promotions -                    -                    1,000           1,000             0.0%

Contractual services 162,772          306,173          2,491,000     2,184,827       90.0%

Materials sales rebate 90,298            135,188          375,000        239,812         63.9%

      

Total Expenses 253,070          441,361          2,867,000     2,425,639       84.6%

  

Net Income -$                  -$                  (1,000)$       1,000$           
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



29 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Accounts and Receivables 

August 2018 

 

 

 

    

Current

Receivables 8/31/18 Total Over 60 days w/in 60 days

Department of General Services 2,235.59$        $        - 2,235.59$        

Ashland 0.00 - 0.00

Charles City 0.00 - 0.00

Chesterfield 305,969.29 - 305,969.29

Colonial Heights 2,653.21 - 2,653.21

Goochland 216.27 - 216.27

Hanover 17,108.90 - 17,108.90

Henrico 238,983.61 - 238,983.61

Hopewell 89,636.21 - 89,636.21

New Kent 377.74 - 377.74

Petersburg 121,690.73 - 121,690.73

Powhatan 7,014.83 - 7,014.83

Prince George 0.00 - 0.00

Richmond 232,181.03 - 232,181.03

  Totals 1,018,067.41$ -$              1,018,067.41$    
 


